Licensing Sub-Committee
18 May 2021
10.00 am
Virtual Meeting

A panel of three members from all members of the Licensing Committee:Councillors: Jake Short, Eric Allen, Martina Allen, David Bartolucci,
Richard Clifton, Steve Cook, Jean Crossby, Tom Drummond,
Marlene Heron, Catherine Gray, Jillian Green, Barry Lewis,
James McDermott-Hill, Tony Shields and Chris Williams

Date 6 May 2021

Enquiries to: Cathy Hayward, Committee Services Officer Tel: 020 8770 4990 | Email:
committee.services@sutton.gov.uk

Copies of reports are available in large print on request

AGENDA

1.

Welcome and introductions

2.

Election of Chair

3.

Declarations of interest

4.

Minutes of the previous meeting

3 - 12

To approve as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 17 March
2021.

5.

Licensing Sub-Committee - Hearings Procedure

13 - 24

6.

Licence Application

25 - 74

An application relating to Euro Poli, 192 High Street, Sutton, SM1 1NR seeking
a new premises licence to permit Supply of Alcohol - retail (off the premises)
during the following hours, everyday 08:00am till 21:00pm.

7.

Any urgent business
To consider any items which, in the view of the Chair, should be dealt with as a
matter of urgency because of special circumstances (in accordance with
S100B(4) of the Local Government Act 1972).

Page 1

Agenda Annex

Reminder – Declaration of Interests
Members should consider the following interests and whether they have any they should
declare.
Disclosable Pecuniary Interests
Where you have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in any business of the Authority at this
meeting and you have either declared it beforehand in the Register of Members’ Interests or
to the Monitoring Officer for entry in the Register you must state at this meeting that you have
such an interest and then withdraw from the room or chamber where the meeting is being held
whilst that business is considered.
Where you have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest in any business of the Authority at this
meeting and have not previously declared it you must declare the nature of that interest at this
meeting and then withdraw from the room or chamber where the meeting is being held whilst
that business is considered.
Other Pecuniary and Non-Pecuniary Interests
Where you have any other pecuniary or non-pecuniary interest in any business at this
meeting you must declare that interest, but may continue to speak and vote on the matter.
However, if the interest is one which a member of the public, with knowledge of the relevant
facts, would reasonably regard as so significant that it is likely to prejudice your judgement of
the public interest then you should declare the interest and withdraw from the room or
chamber where the meeting is being held whilst that business is considered.
Further information on these matters can be found in the Council's Code of Conduct and
Constitution. If you are in any doubt as to whether you have an interest you should seek
advice before the committee meeting from Matthew Stickley.
If, during the course of the committee meeting, you consider you may have an interest you
should always declare it.

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 3

Agenda Item 4
Licensing Sub-Committee
17 March 2021

LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE
17 March 2021 at 10.00 am
MEMBERS:

Councillors Steve Cook, Marlene Heron and James McDermott-Hill

42. WELCOME AND INTRODUCTIONS
Attendees and those watching on the live stream were welcomed.

43. ELECTION OF CHAIR
Councillor Steve Cook proposed Councillor Marlene Heron be the Chair for the duration of
the meeting, this was seconded by Councillor James McDermott-Hill.
Resolved that:
1. Councillor Marlene Heron be elected Chair of the Sub-Committee for the duration of
the meeting.

44. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
There were no declarations of interest.

45. LICENSING SUB-COMMITTEE - HEARINGS PROCEDURE
The Chair drew attention to the Council’s procedure to be followed at the meeting.

46. LICENCE APPLICATION
Licensing Act 2003 - Notice of Determination
Date of issue: 22 March 2021
Decision taken by the Licensing Sub-Committee on: 17 March 2021
Application by: Mr Ertugrul Bal
Application for a variation of premises licence held in respect of the premises known as
BEST KEBAB 45 NORTH STREET, CARSHALTON, SM5 2HG

1

Agenda Item 4

Page 4
Licensing Sub-Committee
17 March 2021

Present
Sub Committee:
Councillor Marlene Heron
Councillor James McDermott-Hill
Councillor Steve Cook
Applicant:
Ms Emine Fezal Yurdakul
Those making relevant representations:
Tracey Hall-Green
Officers:
Saima Khan Legal Advisor
Hannah Smith, Licensing Officer
Cathy Hayward, Committee Services Officer
The Hearing
The Licensing Officer introduced the matter for determination and informed the SubCommittee that Mr Ertugrul Bal had applied for the variation of the existing premises licence
in respect of the premises known as Best Kebab, 45 North Street, Carshalton, SM5 2HG
The application sought the grant of the following:


a variation to the existing premises licence to add the sale by retail of alcohol (for
consumption off the premises).

The Licensing Officer informed the Sub-Committee that the proposed hours of licensable
activities and the hours of operation are laid out in Appendix 1 and 2.
The Licensing Officer explained that the applicant has advertised the application, as
required, by way of a poster at the premises and by advertisement in a local newspaper and
that the application had also been advertised on the Council’s website.
It was confirmed that all Responsible Authorities received a copy of the application.
Trading Standards as the Responsible Authority for the protection of children from harm
licensing objective initially raised concerns regarding the application. Following further
consultation the applicant has addressed the concerns by making amendments to their
operating schedule. These amendments are reflected in the conditions shown in Appendix

2

Page 5

Agenda Item 4
Licensing Sub-Committee
17 March 2021

3. In light of these amendments the representation made by the Trading Standards Officer
has been satisfied.
Two valid representations were received from Other Persons. The representations referred
to matters that related to the prevention of crime and disorder, and the prevention of public
nuisance licensing objectives.
The Licensing Officer confirmed that copies of all representations have been forwarded to
the applicant and have been made available to the Sub-Committee.
In response to questions from the panel the Licensing officer confirmed the hours of the
licences held by the Railway Tavern, as Monday to Friday 10am - 0.30, Friday - Saturday
10.00am - 01.30am and Sunday 11.00am - 11.30pm and the Carshalton Social club
11.00am - midnight everyday.
The Sub-Committee then heard a submission from the applicant the main points raised
included:












The premises licence authorising the provision of late night refreshment and the
playing of recorded music had been place since 2006 without any issues arising
impacting on the licence.
There was no request to alter the opening hours.
The applicant had worked with the Trading Standards team.
A risk assessment had been completed.
The applicant was committed to the Licensing Objectives
There were signs in the shops asking that customers should leave the premises
quietly.
The staff were trained.
No drunk customers would be served.
There is closed circuit television (CCTV) at the premises and signs to inform
customers of the CCTV.
The premises has a zero tolerance to drugs policy.

The Sub-Committee clarified with the applicant:






The alcohol that would be sold would be beer and wine, the beer would not be
strong beer, and spirits would not be sold.
Alcohol would only be sold with food.
There would be no vertical drinking outside the shop, although it was noted that the
applicant would not be able to deal with areas which could not be seen from the
premises.
The phone number of the local police station would be displayed within the shop.

The Chair drew attention to the written representations from other persons included within
the agenda.

3

Agenda Item 4

Page 6
Licensing Sub-Committee
17 March 2021

The Sub-Committee then heard a submission from Tracey Hall-Green, Other Person, the
main points raised included:








The premises was not able to stop customers who have moved from areas adjacent
to the premises from moving to nearby roads or sitting on walls of residential
properties.
Families lived in the surrounding residential roads, therefore noise was a concern.
It would be preferable that customers were not dispersed from adjacent to the
premises into the surrounding more residential roads.
The opening hours of the Railway Tavern were not the same as that in its licence,
but were until 23.00 Monday to Saturday and 22.00 on Sundays.
Litter was found in the gardens of properties near to the premises, and on
pavements in surrounding roads.
There had been additional objections from residents but it was understood these
were not included as they were not submitted within the statutory timescale.

The Sub-Committee clarified with the other person:





She had observed anti social behaviour, which appeared to be related to alcohol in
the vicinity of the premises.
When the Railway Tavern closes patrons do not always disperse immediately.
It could be suggested that if the applicants premises also sold alcohol anti social
behaviour seen in the area could become worse.
The bins in the surrounding area, and the vicinity of the premises were not large
enough.

The panel clarified with the agent:




The premises was a small shop, with two members of staff at the front, there may be
another member of staff working at the back.
The applicant would consider reduced hours than that in the application for the sale
of alcohol, with the last order for in person sales being 23.00 hours.
The agent suggested that online sales for delivery be allowed until 12midnight as
this would not affect neighbours.

The meeting adjourned at 10.33am and reconvened at 10.42am
In summary the agent confirmed


They would be happy to amend the times offered in the application to permit the
sale of alcohol for in person sales from 12 noon until 23:00 hours Monday to
Saturday and 12 noon to 22:30 hours on Sundays.

Reasoning and decision

4

Page 7

Agenda Item 4
Licensing Sub-Committee
17 March 2021

In making their decision, the Sub-Committee considered the merits of the application and
had regard to the Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy and guidance issued by the
Secretary of State under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003. The Sub-Committee
considered the steps which were appropriate and proportionate to promote the licensing
objectives, and after taking account of all relevant issues that had been raised in the
application and by the written and verbal representations, decided to GRANT the application
for a variation of premises licence subject to conditions as set out below.
The Sub-Committee had regard to the relevant written and verbal representations from
Other Persons which raised concerns relating to prevention of crime and disorder, and the
prevention of public nuisance licensing objectives. The Sub-Committee considered the
measures in place to promote the licensing objectives.
The Sub-Committee drew attention that the premises had held a licence for over 10 years.
Although there were issues relating to litter which affected local residents, the majority of the
issues related to alcohol, which the premises did not provide at present. The premises
would only sell beer (not strong beer) and wine, and that all alcohol sales would be with
food.
The Sub-Committee noted that a risk assessment had been completed by the applicant,
which included that customers would be supervised leaving the premises, there would be no
vertical drinking, no sales to drunk customers. It was also noted there would be signs
showing phone numbers for local police stations, and that CCTV was in operation and that
no drinking on the premises was permitted.
The Sub-Committee noted that litter was an issue in the area and suggested the premises
should provide bins.
The Sub-Committee discussed that each application must be considered on its own merits.
They drew attention that this type of premises are an important part of the local economy,
however, that consideration to local residents was important.
The Sub-Committee noted that there had been a representation from the Responsible
Authority, Trading Standards that had been addressed by the applicant agreeing to the
conditions proposed by Trading Standards so that the Trading Standards Officer was
satisfied. There had been no representations from the police.
The applicant had agreed to reduced hours for in person sales and to additional conditions
suggested by the Licensing Sub-Committee, to support alleviating problems of people
leaving local pubs at closing time and purchasing additional alcohol at the premises and to
promote the licensing objectives of the prevention of crime and disorder and the prevention
of public nuisance.
The Sub-Committee noted its powers on a review. Should any problems arise following
grant of the licence; a review application can be submitted by any person.

5

Agenda Item 4

Page 8
Licensing Sub-Committee
17 March 2021

Decision
The Sub-Committee decided to GRANT the application for a variation of the
PREMISES LICENCE , subject to conditions, as follows:
To permit off sales of alcohol:
For sales in person to people attending the premises:



Monday to Saturday: 12.00 hours - 23.00 hours
Sunday 12.00 hours to 22.30 hours

For sales by delivery of on-line or telephone orders:
 Monday to Sunday 12.00 hours - midnight
with no change to the opening hours of the premises. The current licensable activities
attached to the premises licence remain unchanged.
Mandatory Conditions.
The licence would be subject to the mandatory conditions laid down in the Licensing Act
2003 (this information will be available to the Sub-Committee meeting)
Conditions arising from applicant’s Operating Schedule
The Prevention of crime and disorder
1. Staffing, training
Staffing, training
a) All staff shall be trained before they are allowed to sell any alcohol to the public.
b) Records of staff training along with any training material used must be kept by the
Designated Premises Supervisor or Premises Licence Holder.
c) All training records shall be signed by the trainer and trainee in respect of training
received.
d) The premises licence holder shall implement a training manual and all members of staff
shall be suitably trained in underage sales prevention before making any sales of alcohol.
e) Refresher training shall be carried out every six months for all staff and documented
within the training records.
f) The training records shall be available for inspection by the police or authorised local
authority officers.

2. Closed-circuit television
a) The premises shall operate a closed-circuit television system (CCTV).

6

Page 9

Agenda Item 4
Licensing Sub-Committee
17 March 2021

b) The CCTV shall be maintained in effective working order, and shall be in operation at all
times the premises is open to the public.
c) The CCTV shall record clear images permitting the identification of individuals.
d) All recordings made by the CCTV system shall be retained and stored in a suitable and
secure manner for a minimum of 28 days.
e) Viewable copies of the recordings shall be made available on request to police or
authorised local authority officers as soon as reasonably practicable in accordance with the
Data Protection Act 1998 (or any replacement legislation).
f) Suitable signage shall be displayed at the premises in a prominent position as customers
enter the premises stating that CCTV is in operation.
The prevention of public nuisance
3. Conduct of premises
Clear legible notices are to be displayed at all exits from the premises requesting patrons to
respect the needs of local residents and to leave the premises and area quietly.
The protection of children from harm
4. Age verification – challenge 25
a) Evidence of age in the form of photographic identification (ID) shall be requested from
any person appearing to those selling or supplying alcohol to be under the age of 25 and
who is attempting to buy alcohol.
b) Acceptable identification for the purpose of this condition is that issued by a government
agency bearing a holographic mark with a photograph and date of birth, or the Proof of Age
Standards Scheme (PASS) approved age cards.
d) Notices shall be strategically and prominently placed at points of sale advising customers
that they may be asked to provide evidence of age.
e) A refusals book to record every instance that sales of alcohol are refused shall be
maintained.
f) The refusals book shall document the date and time a refusal of sale is made and the
member of staff refusing the sale.
g) The refusal book shall be available for inspection by the police or authorised local
authority officers.
5. Alcohol delivery
a) All sales of alcohol for delivery must be paid at the time of ordering using a debit or credit
card.
b) All delivery persons must be aged 18 years or more.
c) The alcohol must be packaged separately from goods that aren’t subject to age related
sales, so that it can easily be retrieved to prevent an illegal sale.
d) Details of the order (including the type, amount of alcohol, name and address of the
customer) shall be kept at the licensed premises and must be shown on the printout
dispatched with the order.

7

Agenda Item 4

Page 10
Licensing Sub-Committee
17 March 2021

e) All delivery drivers and riders must allow any police or authorised local authority officers
to inspect any alcohol or order details on request.
f) The delivery of alcohol shall be made only to a residential or business address and the
customer to be clearly resident inside the building. The delivery of alcohol will not be made
or completed to a person in a public place (for example a street corner, park or bus stop).
g) The person taking the order and /or making the delivery must ensure that the recipient is
18 years of age. A check shall be made to ensure the person accepting the delivery has the
debit/credit card used for the purchase. If they appear under 25 years of age, photographic
ID will be required before the alcohol is handed over. Examples of appropriate ID include a
passport, photographic driving licence, military ID and the Proof of Age Standards Scheme
(PASS) approved age cards.
h) Where a third party courier is used to supply alcohol, they will be instructed to provide an
age verification service or adopt a policy of checking age and ID at the time of delivery. The
courier must adopt a policy of not allowing minors to sign for and accept deliveries. A record
of all couriers used and the system that they use to verify age will be kept and produced
upon request from the police or authorised local authority officers.
Additional conditions offered by the applicant during the meetings and imposed by
the Sub Committee:
Alcohol, restrictions





Alcohol shall not be supplied or sold at or from the premises otherwise that to
persons ordering food.
No beer, lager, cider, ale or spirit mixers with an Alcohol by Volume (ABV) content of
above 5% will be sold or offered for sale.
No spirits will be sold or offered for sale.
No sales or collection of alcohol will be permitted by customers in person after 23:00
hours Monday to Saturday and after 22:30 hours on Sundays. After 23:00 hours
Monday to Saturday and 22:30 on Sundays the sale of alcohol shall be restricted to
deliveries of on-line and telephone orders only.

External Area



The premises licence holder will take all reasonable steps to ensure that there is no
vertical drinking by customers on the frontage of the premises.
The premises licence holder shall ensure that a member of staff supervises
customers leaving the premises after 22:00 hours every day and take all reasonable
steps to ensure that any customers leave the immediate area quickly and quietly and
do not congregate.

Litter


Sufficient litter bins will be provided at or near the exits, to enable the disposal of
waste.

8

Page 11

Agenda Item 4
Licensing Sub-Committee
17 March 2021



At the end of each trading day, the frontage of pavement immediately outside the
premises must be swept, and any litter and sweepings thereon must be collected
and disposed of appropriately.

Notices






Notices setting out the last admittance for sales of alcohol in person will be
displayed at the premises.
Signage will be displayed at the premises stating that consumption of alcohol is not
permitted on the premises.
The premises licence holder shall operate a policy of no sale of alcohol to persons
who appear intoxicated.
The premises licence holder shall operate a zero tolerance policy to drugs inside the
premises.
The nearest Police Station’s phone number will be displayed in the premises.

.

47. ANY URGENT BUSINESS
There was no urgent business.

The meeting ended at 10.50 am

Chair:
Date:

9

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 13

Agenda Item 5

Licensing Hearing Procedures
This procedure note sets out how the Licensing Committee will manage its business in an efficient,
fair and transparent way. It is specific to hearings under the Licensing Act 2003 (“the 2003 Act”) and
references to a Committee are to be taken as the full Committee of fifteen or a Sub-Committee of
three Members.
The Council has an approved Statement of Licensing Policy, which can be viewed on the Council’s
website.

How licensing applications will be dealt with:
The Council has established a Licensing Committee of 15 Members as required by section 6, of the
2003 Act. The prime purpose of the Committee is to exercise all the Council’s functions under the
2003 Act (except those relating to the making of the statement of licensing policy) and review
strategy and licensing policy and make appropriate recommendations to Council. Determination of
applications and notices are delegated to the Licensing Sub-Committee consisting of three members
of the Licensing Committee, as provided by section 9 of the 2003 Act.
The purpose of this procedure is to help ensure that licence applications are dealt with in
accordance with the law, that probity is observed at all times, and that there is effective public
participation in the process.
The Licensing Act 2003 (Hearings) Regulations 2005, as amended (“the Hearings Regulations”)
make provision for the holding of hearings under the 2003 Act Subject to the provisions of the
Hearings Regulations, each Committee or Sub-Committee may regulate its own procedure. The
Licensing Act 2003 Premises licences and club premises certificates) Regulations 2005, as
amended, (“the Premises Licence and Club Premises Certificate Regulations”) set out the
arrangements to be followed in relation to, applications, notices and representations under the
2003 Act.
For the purposes of this document the term ‘party to the hearing’ or ‘party’ or ‘parties’ means
applicants and other persons / responsible authorities who have made relevant representations.
Licensing applications to the Council will be dealt with in two ways:
1. By a Licensing Sub-Committee of three Members of the Licensing Committee. All three
Members need to be present throughout the Licensing Sub-Committee meeting convened for a
hearing or
2. By licensing officers within the delegations of the Licensing Committee or Sub-Committee as
set out in the Council’s Licensing Policy and this procedure.

Agenda Item 5

Page 14

Hearings may arise following a relevant representation being made (relates to one or more of the
licensing objectives) in respect of the following applications:
● For premises licence
● To transfer, review or vary premises licence
● For provisional statement
● For club premises certificate
● To review or vary a club premises certificate
● For grant of personal licence.
Hearings can also arise due to:
● Cancellation of an interim authority notice following a police objection
● A police or environmental health (noise) objection to a temporary event notice
● Convictions coming to light after the grant of a personal licence.
Where there is a relevant representation to an application or a review has been issued, the Council
must:
●
●
●
●
●
●

Arrange a public hearing within the prescribed timescales for the type of application as laid
down by the regulations
Notify parties of forthcoming hearings within prescribed timescales as laid down by the
regulations
Ensure statutory compliance with the notice and application process
Provide applicants with copies of the relevant representation(s) that have been made by
responsible authorities and other persons
Supply public information at each hearing
Supply appropriate information to all parties to a hearing.

How Representations are dealt with:
Responsible Authorities and any other persons (including councillors and any individual, body or
business) may make written representations about applications concerning a premises licence, for a
provisional statement, or club premises certificate or about a review.
●

Generally, these must be made at any time during a period of 28 consecutive days starting on
the day after the day on which the application was received by the Council. Representations
received after this date will not be accepted.

Anyone wishing to make representations about an application or review should write to or email the
Council at the contact addresses given in the Licensing Policy or on its website within the specified
time scales.

Page 15

●
●
●

●

Agenda Item 5

A copy of all relevant representations will be provided, in full, to the applicant or premises
licence holder
Correspondence submitted anonymously will not be considered
Representations that are found to be vexatious, frivolous or repetitive will not be taken into
consideration and the writer will be notified of this decision. This may include representations
that do not provide supporting evidence.
In the case of an application for the review of a premises licence, the Council will consider
an application to be ‘repetitive’ where more than one review is made, in any 12 month
period, relating to the same licensing objective or issue, as set out at section 51 of the
2003 Act.

If there are no relevant representations made to the Council, then a licence must be granted,
subject to conditions consistent with the operating schedule associated with the application and
those mandatory conditions required by legislation.
Committee Members will not enter into correspondence or discussion with applicants, their agents or
representatives, other relevant persons or responsible authorities about the merits of the
application(s) they may be called upon to decide.
●

Members wishing to seek clarification of an application prior to the hearing of the Licensing
Sub-Committee may in the first instance contact the author of the report, using the contact
details given therein, or alternatively email the Licensing Team, licensing@sutton.gov.uk with
their query.

Where an application is to be decided at a hearing by the Sub-Committee, applicants and those who
have made relevant written representations in connection with the application will be invited to attend.
●

The papers for the Sub-Committee hearing will be available to the press and public and the
applicant or premises licence holder.

The Sub-Committee Meeting Agenda
The agenda containing the officer reports on the applications to be considered at the meeting will be
circulated to Members of the Sub-Committee at least ten days ahead of the meeting. A copy is
posted on the Council’s website or can be obtained by contacting Committee Services on 020 8770
4990 / committeeservices@sutton.gov.uk.
The parties to the hearing will be notified in writing prior to the meeting, advising them that the
application is to be considered by the Sub-Committee and of the arrangements made for the
determination of the application. The Applicant receives copies of representations and any
additional information sent to other parties.

Agenda Item 5

Page 16

The Authority may also give notice to a party that it requires clarification and further information in
support of their application, representations or notice.
Notices to be Served by Parties to the Hearing
Parties to the hearing wishing to make representations to the Sub-Committee on A, B or C below
must notify the Council (using the contact details listed at the end of this procedure note) within the
timescales shown below as set out in the Hearings Regulations.
As far as Temporary Event Notices and the Emergency Interim Steps review procedures are
concerned, these fall outside A-C below because only the applicant/premises licence holder and the
police are involved (and Environmental Health Pollution Control in respect of Temporary Event
Notices).
A. Cancellation of interim authority notice following police objections:
A minimum of one working day before the hearing or first day of the hearing, written notice must be
given if a party: intends to attend and/or be represented at the hearing, or intends to call any
witnesses (names of witnesses must be provided), or considers a hearing to be unnecessary.
B. Review of premises licence following closure order;
A minimum of two working days before the hearing of first day of the hearing, written notice must be
given if a party: intends to attend and/or be represented at the hearing, or intends to call any
witnesses (names of witnesses must be provided), or considers a hearing to be unnecessary.
C. For all other applications
A minimum of five working days before the hearing or first day of the hearing, written notice must be
given if a party intends to attend and/or be represented at the hearing, or intends to call any
witnesses (names of witnesses must be provided), or considers a hearing to be unnecessary.
Extension of Time Limits and Adjournment
The Council may extend any of the time limits set out in this procedure, unless otherwise specified
and subject to restrictions that apply to review following a closure order and summary review, where
it considers that such an extension is necessary in the public interest. Where a time limit is extended
the Council must give a notice to the parties stating the period of the extension and the reasons for it.
The Sub-Committee may adjourn a hearing, subject to restrictions that apply to review following a
closure order and summary review, to a specified date or specified additional dates, if it considers
that it is necessary for its consideration of any representations or notice made by a party.

Page 17

●

Agenda Item 5

In such a case, the Council will notify all relevant parties of the reasons for the adjournment,
the date(s), time(s) and place(s)(s) of the adjourned hearing as soon as the adjournment is
agreed.

Dispensing with the Hearing and Withdrawal of Representations
The Council may dispense with holding a hearing where all the parties to the hearing, other than
the Council itself, have given written notice that they consider a hearing to be unnecessary.
●

Parties to the hearing may withdraw their representations by either giving notice to the
Council no later than 24 hours before the day of the hearing or first day of the hearing, or
orally at the hearing.

●

This does not apply to review applications where no such mechanism is available to
dispense with a hearing.

Petitions
If a petition is submitted, the organiser(s) should ensure that:
●
●
●
●

The grounds of the representation are set out in detail on every page containing
signatures
Names and address are clearly legible and preferably written in black ink
The date(s) on which the signatures are collected is stated
The names and addresses of the organisers are clearly stated for the purpose of future
correspondence.

The only signatures on petitions – whether on paper or through the e-petitions system – which can be
taken into account are from persons who are likely to be affected by the application.
Petitions raised through the e-petitions system are processed in line with the guidance for the use of
this system.
Only one representative of the petitioners will be permitted to speak at a hearing.
Other documents/information
The Council has the discretion to consider whether to take into account any documentary or other
information produced by a party in support of their application, representations or notice (as
applicable) either before the hearing, or with the consent of all the other parties, at the hearing.
A party may amplify and clarify their representation at a hearing. During the hearing no new matters
may be raised without the express consent of the Chair and new matters cannot be raised where

Agenda Item 5

Page 18

they fall within a licensing objective not previously referred to in the written representation.
Members and Licensing Sub-Committees
Members must not sit on a Licensing Sub-Committee if:
A. they have an interest which is a disclosable pecuniary interest
B. they have another personal interest as defined in the Member Code of Conduct and, as a
consequence, consider it inappropriate to participate in the matter
C. they have expressed a view which will give the appearance of bias, or have previously
been involved in a predetermination of an application in respect of, or any other matter
relating to, the premises
D. they are Ward Members.
Attendance
Where a Member, who has an interest which falls within (A) above, is the applicant or makes a
valid representation, he/she may attend the meeting only for the purpose of addressing the
Licensing Sub-Committee on the application or their representation and answering questions.
They must declare their interest at the hearing.
Members who have an interest which falls within (B) above can a
 ttend a hearing of the
Sub-Committee provided they have declared their interest at the hearing.
Officers’ Report
The officers’ report to the Sub-Committee will comprise the following:
1. A brief summary of the application
2. The relevant parts of the Council’s Licensing Policy
3. Reference to the appropriate provisions in the National Guidance (if
applicable).
Organisation of the Hearings
Prior to the hearing, Members will have received copies of all representations and relevant
correspondence (including photographs and other evidence which supports the representation).
Hearings will normally be held in public, but the public may be excluded for part or all of the hearing
where it considers that the public interest in doing so outweighs the public interest in the hearing, or
that part of the hearing, taking place in public. For this purpose, a party and any person assisting or
representing a party may be treated as a member of the public.
Parties to the hearing have the right to be assisted or represented by any person whether or not

Page 19

Agenda Item 5

that person is legally qualified.
The order of business at the meeting is at the discretion of the Chair. For most meetings, the order
will usually be decided according to the number of parties to the hearing who are present for each
item.
The following criteria are used in determining the order of agenda items:
1. Applications which are withdrawn or which officers recommend should be deferred;
2. Applications which have been deferred from a previous meeting
3. Applications regarded as a priority due to the large number of parties to the hearing who
have given notice that they will attend, or be represented, or call witnesses, or address the
hearing
4. Applications for which the applicant, other relevant persons or responsible authorities wish to
speak
5. All other applications.
Organisation of the Sub-Committee Room
Tables will be set up for the following:
●
●
●
●
●

Table 1 Responsible Authorities e.g. Police, Environmental Health, Trading Standards
Table 2 Other persons who are making relevant representations
Table 3 Applicants
Table 4 Case Licensing Officer
Table 5 The Sub-Committee, Committee Services Officer and Legal Advisor

Hearing Procedure
The Chair will be elected from the Sub-Committee for the duration of the meeting. They will
introduce all those in attendance including Members, officers and all parties, asking the latter to
confirm whether they are represented.
The Sub-Committee Members will be assisted, where necessary, by a
1. Legal Advisor
2. Committee Services Officer
These two officers attend to provide advice and procedural guidance to the Sub-Committee. They
are the only officers who retire with the Sub-Committee.
A hearing shall take the form of a discussion led by the Sub-Committee and proceed as follows:
Introductions

Agenda Item 5

Page 20

1. The Chair is elected by the Sub-Committee for the duration of the meeting.
2. The Chair confirms that the notices, hearing procedure and agenda were received by all
parties.
3. The Legal advisor informs those present that the Sub-Committee had a briefing prior to
the hearing to confirm the procedure and for clarifications on any aspect of the
application.
The Officer
4. The Officers present the report.
5. Sub-Committee Members ask questions of Officers.
The Applicant
6. The Applicant (includes applicant for review) or representative /agent speaks, (time
allowed maximum 15 minutes, unless the Chair agrees a different period in the
circumstances of a particular case). If the Applicant is unrepresented and is having
difficulty presenting their case the Legal Advisor may ask questions so the relevant
points are raised.
7. The Applicant's witnesses speak (with permission of Chair). This forms part of 15
minutes.
8. The Sub-Committee Members ask questions of applicants and their witnesses (only
applies to witnesses who have been given permission to speak by the Chair).
The Responsible Authority
9. Each Responsible Authority who has made a representation speaks (time allowed
maximum 15 minutes per Responsible Authority, unless the Chair agrees a different
period in the circumstances of a particular case).
10. The Responsible Authority’s witnesses speak (with permission of Chair). This forms
part of 15 minutes.
11. Sub-Committee Members ask questions of the Responsible Authorities.
The Other Persons (people who have made a valid representation)
12. ‘Other Persons’ speak, time allowed maximum 15 minutes shared between unless
the Chair agrees a different period in the circumstances of a particular case.
13. ‘Other Persons’ witnesses speak (with permission of Chair). This forms part of 15
minutes.
14. Sub-Committee Members ask questions of the other parties to the hearing and their
witnesses (only applies to witnesses who have been given permission to speak).

Page 21

Agenda Item 5

Review Cases
15. In the case of a review hearing the above process applies, except that the applicant for
review will go first and will be followed by any responsible authority, other persons and
finish with the licence holder.
Questions and Closing statements
16. The Applicant (with exception and with permission of Chair) asks questions of the
other parties to the hearing and their witnesses.
17. The Other parties to the hearing (with exception and with permission of Chair) ask
questions of the applicant/other parties to the hearing and their witnesses.
18. The Chair, where they consider that it is appropriate to do so, invites a closing
statement from the parties to the hearing. Such statements will be made in the
following order: responsible authorities, others person and the applicant.
19. In the case of a review the order for summing up will be that the applicant for review
will go first and will be followed by any responsible authority, other persons and finish
with the licence holder.
20. The Chair makes any closing remarks.
Making and Reporting the Decision
21. The Chair will announce that the Sub-Committee will retire to private session to make
their decision. The Legal Advisor and Committee Services Officer will be invited to join
the closed session. During the private session the Sub-Committee will discuss the
application, seek advice on legal or procedural matters, form a view on the application
and make a decision by majority vote.
22. The Sub-Committee returns and reopens for public session.
23. The Legal Advisor informs the hearing of any advice that they have given to the
Sub-Committee during the private session.
24. The Sub-Committee’s decision will be given by the Chair or the Chair will invite the
Legal advisor to do so. After the hearing and within 5 days, officers will write to all
parties to confirm the Sub-Committee's decision, giving full reasons.
25. The Chair will close the meeting.
Failure to Attend
If a party has informed the Council that they do not intend to attend or be represented at the
hearing, the hearing can proceed in their absence. If a party who has not so indicated fails to
attend or be represented at a hearing the Sub-Committee may:

Agenda Item 5

Page 22

● Hear the case in the party’s absence.
Or
● Adjourn the hearing to specified date, where it considers this to be necessary in the public
interest.
Where a hearing takes place in the absence of the party, the Sub-Committee must consider at the
hearing the application, representations or notice made by that party.
Where an adjournment is made, the Council must notify the parties of the date, time and place to
which the hearing has been adjourned.
Making the Decision
Having heard the representations and prior to retiring to make its decision, the Sub-Committee may,
if it wishes, seek the guidance of the Legal Advisor regarding possible suitable conditions in respect
of any particular application. The case-licensing officer will have included potential conditions
extracted from the applicants operating schedule within their report.
The Sub-Committee has a duty to conduct its business impartially, not to predetermine the issue
and not to discuss matters with the press or residents. In making its decision the Sub-Committee
must give reasons to explain the decision. It must state, in respect of premises licenses, why refusal
or attachment of conditions is appropriate in order to promote a particular licensing objective, and,
in respect of all other applications, the reasons why applications are refused or revoked.
The Sub-Committee must disregard any information given or evidence produced by a party or
witness which is not relevant to the application, representations or notice, or not promoting the
licensing objectives.
Notification of the Decision
The decision and reasons for the decision will be recorded in the minutes of the meeting. These
will be circulated and made available on the website.
The Chair will inform those present that generally applicants will be sent a decision notice in writing
within five working days of the day of the meeting outlining the decision and the reasons to support it.
In certain specified cases the decision must be given immediately. Details of the appeal rights will also
be sent with the decision notice.
Right to Appeal
Applicants and the other parties to the hearing have specified appeal rights. The appeal must be
made to the relevant Magistrates’ Court within 21 days of the date of receipt of notification of the
decision by a party. Details of how to appeal and the grounds on which an appeal may be made

Page 23

Agenda Item 5

are sent out with the notification letter.
Minutes of the Meeting
The minutes of a meeting should be approved at either the next meeting of the Licensing
Committee or the next meeting of the Sub-Committee where there is Member on the panel who
was on the panel which relates to the minutes being signed, whichever is the sooner.
Contact details: licensing@sutton.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 25

Agenda Item 6

Report to:

Licensing Sub-Committee

Report title:

Application for a New Premises Licence under the Licensing Act
2003.
Alex Constantinides, Interim Assistant Director, Highways, Transport
& Regulatory Services
Euro Poli, 192 High Street, Sutton, SM1 1NR

Report from:
Premises Name and
Address
Ward/Areas affected:
Chair of Committee/Lead
Member:
Author(s)/Contact
Number(s):

Open/Exempt:

Date:

18 May 2021

Sutton Central
Councillor Jake Short
Hannah Smith, Environmental Protection Officer - Licensing
020 8770 4016
Nick Cloke, Licensing Lead Officer
020 8770 5622
Open

1.

Introduction

1.1

This application relating to Euro Poli, 192 High Street, Sutton, SM1 1NR was made on 26
March 2021 by JMC Licensing Consultants acting as agent for Mr Bahadeen Ali Hassan.

1.2

The application seeks a new premises licence to permit Supply of Alcohol - retail (off the
premises) during the following hours, everyday 08:00am till 21:00pm.

1.3

This premises falls in our cumulative impact area (CIA), however the application is only till
21.00pm, which means the CIA is not engaged, the reason is the licensable activity will cease
at 21.00pm.

1.4

Relevant pages of the application form are attached at Appendix 1.

1.5

The proposed hours of operation are laid out in Appendix 2.

2.

Consultation

2.1

I confirm that the applicant has advertised the application by way of public notice displayed at
the premises, and in a local newspaper. The application has also been made available on the
Council’s website.

2.2

I confirm that all Responsible Authorities received a copy of the application. No
representations were received from Responsible Authorities.

Agenda Item 6

Page 26

2.3

Two valid representations were received from Other Parties. The representation makes
reference to matters that relate to the prevention of crime and disorder, public nuisance and
the protection of children from harm licensing objectives. A copy of the representation is
attached at Appendix 4.

3.

Location

3.1

A map showing the approximate location of the premises is attached as Appendix 5, with
photographs attached as Appendix 6.

4.

Licensing Objectives

4.1

In considering this report the Sub-Committee is required to take into account the Secretary of
State’s Guidance issued under section 182 of the Licensing Act 2003, and our Licensing
Policy (relevant paragraphs are produced at Appendix 7) and the licensing objectives of:
●
●
●
●

The prevention of crime and disorder.
Public safety.
The prevention of public nuisance.
The protection of children from harm

5.

Determination

5.1

In making their decision in respect of the application, the Sub-Committee must have regard to
Statutory Guidance and the Councils’ own Statement of Licensing Policy as well as to the
representations made and the evidence heard. However, the Sub-Committee must disregard
any representations that do not relate to the promotion of the licensing objectives.

5.2

The licensing sub-committee is asked to determine the application, having regard to the
representations received and any evidence heard at the hearing, in accordance with the
following options:
●
●
●
●

Grant the application as requested.
Grant the application subject to such conditions as the authority considers
appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives.
Exclude from the scope of the licence any of the licensable activities to which the
application relates.
Reject the application.

6.

Conditions

6.1

Mandatory Conditions. If granted, the licence would be subject to the mandatory conditions
laid down in the Licensing Act 2003 (this information will be available to the Sub-Committee
meeting).

Page 27

Agenda Item 6

6.2

Conditions arising from applicant's’ Operating Schedule. In applying for a licence, the
applicant is required to complete an operating schedule. This describes the steps the
applicant proposes to take in order to promote the licensing objectives if the application is
granted. These steps which are appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives will
become conditions if the application is granted and are shown in Appendix 3. However, the
Sub-Committee must, having regard to the representations made, modify these conditions, if it
considers that such a step is appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives.

7.

Appendices and Background Documents
Appendix letter

Title

Appendix 1

Application form

Appendix 2

Proposed hours of operation

Appendix 3

Conditions arising from applicant’s Operating Schedule

Appendix 4

Representation from Other Parties

Appendix 5

Location Plan

Appendix 6

Photographs of Location

Appendix 7

Excerpts from Secretary of State’s Guidance and Sutton’s Statement of
Licensing Policy

Background documents
BACKGROUND papers are held by Hannah Smith, Environmental Protection Officer - 020
8770 4016, hannah.smith@sutton.gov.uk

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 29

London Borough of Sutton Council

Agenda Item 6

Application for a premises licence to be granted under the Licensing Act 2003
PLEASE READ THE FOLLOWING INSTRUCTIONS FIRST
Before completing this form please read the guidance notes at the end of the form. If you are completing this
form by hand please write legibly in block capitals. In all cases ensure that your answers are inside the boxes
and written in black ink. Use additional sheets if necessary.
You may wish to keep a copy of the completed form for your records.
I/
We

Bahadeen Ali Hassan

(Insert name(s) of applicant)
apply for a premises licence under section 17 of the Licensing Act 2003 for the premises described
in Part 1 below (the premises) and I/we are making this application to you as the relevant licensing
authority in accordance with section 12 of the Licensing Act 2003
Part 1 – Premises details
Postal address of premises or, if none, ordnance survey map reference or
description 192 Sutton High Street,

Sutton

Post town

Postcode

Telephone number at premises (if any)

07753 208633

Non-domestic rateable value of premises

£ 35,500

SM1 1NR

Part 2 - Applicant details
Please state whether you are applying for a premises licence as Please tick as appropriate
a)

an individual or individuals *

b)

a person other than an individual *
i
ii

as a limited company/limited liability partnership

X

please complete section (A)

please complete section (B)

as a partnership (other than limited liability)

please complete section (B)

iii

as an unincorporated association or

please complete section (B)

iv

other (for example a statutory corporation)

please complete section (B)

c)

a recognised club

please complete section (B)

d)

a charity

please complete section (B)

e)

the proprietor of an educational establishment

please complete section (B)

f)

a health service body

please complete section (B)

Page 30

Agenda Item 6

1
g)

a person who is registered under Part 2 of the Care
Standards Act 2000 (c14) in respect of an
independent hospital in Wales

please complete section (B)

ga)

a person who is registered under Chapter 2 of Part
1 of the Health and Social Care Act 2008 (within
the meaning of that Part) in an independent hospital
in England

please complete section (B)

h)

the chief officer of police of a police force in
England and Wales

please complete section (B)

* If you are applying as a person described in (a) or (b) please confirm (by ticking yes to one box below):

I am carrying on or proposing to carry on a business which involves the use of the premises
for licensable activities; or
I am making the application pursuant to a
statutory function or
a function discharged by virtue of Her Majesty’s prerogative

(A) INDIVIDUAL APPLICANTS (fill in as applicable)
Mr X Mrs Miss Ms

Other Title (for
example, Rev)

Surname
Hassan

First names
Bahadeen Ali

Date of birth: xxxxxx I am 18 years old or over X Please tick yes
Nationality: British
Current residential address
if different from premises
address
Post town

xxxxxxx

xxxx

Postcode

Daytime contact telephone number
E-mail address
(optional)

xxxxxxx

xxxxxxxx

SECOND INDIVIDUAL APPLICANT (if applicable)
Mr Mrs Miss Ms
Surname

Other Title (for
example, Rev)
First names

xxxxxx

X

Page 31

Agenda Item 6

Date of birth I am 18 years old or over Please tick yes
Nationality
Current postal address if
different from premises
address
Post town

Postcode

Daytime contact telephone number

2
E-mail address
(optional)

(B) OTHER APPLICANTS
Please provide name and registered address of applicant in full. Where appropriate please give any
registered number. In the case of a partnership or other joint venture (other than a body corporate),
please give the name and address of each party concerned.
Name
Address

Registered number (where applicable)

Description of applicant (for example, partnership, company, unincorporated association etc.)

Telephone number (if any)
E-mail address (optional)

Part 3 Operating Schedule
When do you want the premises licence to start?

If you wish the licence to be valid only for a limited period, when do
you want it to end?

DD M YYY
22042021
DD M YYYY

Agenda Item 6

Page 32

Please give a general description of the premises (please read guidance note 1)

A small sized based Mini Market and grocery store selling International food stuffs, with an
off licence

If 5,000 or more people are expected to attend the premises at any one
time, please state the number expected to attend.

3
What licensable activities do you intend to carry on from the premises?
(please see sections 1 and 14 and Schedules 1 and 2 to the Licensing Act 2003)
Provision of regulated entertainment (please read guidance note 2)
a)

plays (if ticking yes, fill in box A)

b)

films (if ticking yes, fill in box B)

c)

indoor sporting events (if ticking yes, fill in box C)

d)

boxing or wrestling entertainment (if ticking yes, fill in box D)

e)

live music (if ticking yes, fill in box E)

f)

recorded music (if ticking yes, fill in box F)

g)

performances of dance (if ticking yes, fill in box G)

h)

anything of a similar description to that falling within (e), (f) or (g)
(if ticking yes, fill in box H)

Please tick all that
apply

Provision of late night refreshment (if ticking yes, fill in box I)
Supply of alcohol (if ticking yes, fill in box J)

In all cases complete boxes K, L and

X

Page 33

A
Plays
Standard days and timings
(please read guidance note

(please read guidance note 3)

Agenda Item 6

Will the performance of a
play take place indoors or
outdoors or both – please tick Indoors

7)

Outdoors

Day Start Finish

Both

Mon

Please give further details here (please read guidance note 4)

Tue

Wed

State any seasonal variations for performing plays (please read
guidance note 5)

Thur

Fri

Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises for the
performance of plays at different times to those listed in the column
on the left, please list (please read guidance note 6)

Sat

Sun

(please read guidance note 3)

B
Films
Standard days and timings
(please read guidance note

Will the exhibition of films
take place indoors or
outdoors or both – please tick Indoors

7)

Outdoors

Day Start Finish

Both

Mon

Please give further details here (please read guidance note 4)

Tue

Wed

Thur

State any seasonal variations for the exhibition of films (please
read guidance note 5)

Page 34

Agenda Item 6
Fri

Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises for the
exhibition of films at different times to those listed in the column on
the left, please list (please read guidance note 6)

Sat

Sun

C
Indoor sporting events Standard days and

timings (please read guidance note 7)
Please give further details (please read
guidance note 4)

Day Start Finish
Mon

Tue

State any seasonal variations for indoor sporting events (please
read guidance note 5)

Wed

Thur

Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises for
indoor sporting events at different times to those listed in the column
on the left, please list (please read guidance note 6)

Fri

Sat

Sun

guidance note 3)

D
Boxing or wrestling
entertainments
Standard days and timings

7)

(please
read
guidanc
e note

Day Start Finish

Will the boxing or wrestling
entertainment take place
indoors or outdoors or both – Indoors
please tick (please read
Outdoors

Both

Page 35
Mon

Agenda Item 6

Please give further details here (please read guidance note 4)

Tue

Wed

State any seasonal variations for boxing or wrestling
entertainment (please read guidance note 5)

Thur

Fri

Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises for
boxing or wrestling entertainment at different times to those listed in
the column on the left, please list (please read guidance note 6)

Sat

Sun

(please read guidance note 3)

E

Live music
Standard days and timings
(please read guidance note

Will the performance of live
music take place indoors or
outdoors or both – please tick Indoors

7)

Outdoors

Day Start Finish

Both

Mon

Please give further details here (please read guidance note 4)

Tue

Wed

State any seasonal variations for the performance of live music
(please read guidance note 5)

Thur

Fri

Sat

Sun

Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises for the
performance of live music at different times to those listed in the
column on the left, please list (please read guidance note 6)

Agenda Item 6

Page 36

(please read guidance note 3)

F
Recorded music
Standard days and timings
(please read guidance note

Will the playing of recorded
music take place indoors or
outdoors or both – please tick Indoors

7)

Outdoors

Day Start Finish

Both

Mon

Please give further details here (please read guidance note 4)

Tue

Wed

State any seasonal variations for the playing of recorded music
(please read guidance note 5)

Thur

Fri

Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises for the
playing of recorded music at different times to those listed in the
column on the left, please list (please read guidance note 6)

Sat

Sun

(please read guidance note 3)

G
Performances of dance
Standard days and timings
(please read guidance note

Will the performance of dance
take place indoors or
outdoors or both – please tick Indoors

7)

Outdoors

Day Start Finish

Both

Mon

Tue

Please give further details here (please read guidance note 4)

Page 37
Wed

Agenda Item 6

State any seasonal variations for the performance of dance (please
read guidance note 5)

Thur

Fri

Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises for the
performance of dance at different times to those listed in the column
on the left, please list (please read guidance note 6)

Sat

Sun

H
Anything of a similar
Please give a description of the type of entertainment you will be providing
description to that falling
within (e), (f) or (g)
Standard days and timings
(please read guidance note
7)
Day Start Finish

Will this entertainment take place indoors or
outdoors or both – please tick (please read
guidance

Indoors

Mon

note 3)

Outdoors
Both

Tue

Please give further details here (please read guidance note 4)

Wed

Thur

State any seasonal variations for entertainment of a similar
description to that falling within (e), (f) or (g) (please read guidance
note 5)

Fri

Sat

Sun

Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises for the
entertainment of a similar description to that falling within (e), (f) or
(g) at different times to those listed in the column on the left, please
list (please read guidance note 6)

Page 38

Agenda Item 6

guidance note 3)

I
Late night refreshment
Standard days and timings
(please read guidance note

Will the provision of late night
refreshment take place
indoors or outdoors or both – Indoors
please tick (please read

7)

Outdoors

Day Start Finish

Both

Mon

Please give further details here (please read guidance note 4)

Tue

Wed

State any seasonal variations for the provision of late night
refreshment (please read guidance note 5)

Thur

Fri

Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises for
the provision of late night refreshment at different times, to those
listed in the column on the left, please list (please read guidance note
6)

Sat

Sun

J
Supply of alcohol
Standard days and timings (please read
guidance note
Will the supply of alcohol be for

consumption – please tick (please read
guidance note 8) On the premises

7)

Off the
premises

Day Start Finish

Both

Mon

08.00

21.00

Tue

08.0
0

21.00

State any seasonal variations for the supply of alcohol (please
read guidance note 5)

X

Page 39
Wed

08.0
0

21.00

Thur

08.00

21.00

Fri

08.0
0

21.00

Sat

08.0
0

21.00

Sun

08.0
0

21.00

Agenda Item 6

Non standard timings. Where you intend to use the premises for
the supply of alcohol at different times to those listed in the column
on the left, please list (please read guidance note 6)

State the name and details of the individual whom you wish to specify on the licence as designated
premises supervisor (Please see declaration about the entitlement to work in the checklist at the end of
the form):
Name

Mr Hunar Burhan Mohammed

Date of birth: xxxxxx Place of birth: xxxxxxxx Nationality: xxxxxx
Address

xxxxx
xxxxx
Postcode xxxxx
Personal licence number (if known)
xxxxxx
Issuing licensing authority (if known)
Welyn and Hatfield Council

14
K
Please highlight any adult entertainment or services, activities, other entertainment or matters
ancillary to the use of the premises that may give rise to concern in respect of children (please
read guidance note 9).

None

Page 40

Agenda Item 6

L
Hours premises are open to the public
Standard days and timings (please read

guidance note 7)
State any seasonal variations (please read
guidance note 5)

Day Start Finish
Mon

08.0
0

21.0
0

Tue

08.0
0

21.0
0

Wed

08.0
0

21.00

Thur

08.0
0

21.0
0

Fri

08.0
0

21.0
0

Sat

08.0
0

21.0
0

Sun

08.0
0

21.0
0

Non standard timings. Where you intend the premises to be open to
the public at different times from those listed in the column on the
left, please list (please read guidance note 6)

Page 41

Agenda Item 6

M Describe the steps you intend to take to promote the four licensing objectives:
a) General – all four licensing objectives (b, c, d and e) (please read guidance note 10)

1. CCTV
1.1 The premises shall install and maintain a digital CCTV system
1.2 . The CCTV system shall have sufficient hard drive storage capacity to store a minimum
of 31 days.
1.3 The CCTV system shall be capable of obtaining clear facial recognition images and a
clear head and shoulders image of every person entering or leaving the premises at
each exit and entrance point.
1.5 A CCTV log will be completed on a weekly basis to record all elements of the
CCTV System is maintained in good working order and recordings date and time
stamped.
1.6 All staff shall be trained in the operation of the CCTV system to ensure rapid data
retrieval & downloads of footage can be provided to the Police & the Local Authority
Officer upon reasonable request in accordance with the Data Protection Act.
1.7 CCTV shall be continually recording during licensable hours
1.8 In the event of a failure of the CCTV system for any reason, a record of the failure will
be recorded in the premises log and immediate steps will be made to rectify the problem.

Agenda Item 6

Page 42

b) The prevention of crime and disorder
2. Incident / Refusals Register
2.1 An incident log must be kept at the premises. Log records will be retained for a period
of 12 months from the date it occurred. It will be made immediately available on request to
an ‘authorised person’ (as defined by section 13 of the Licensing Act 2003), an authorised
trading standards officer or the police, and must record the following;
(a) All crimes reported to the premises (where relevant to the licensing objectives)
(b) Any incidents of disorder
3. When the designated premises supervisor is not on duty, a contact telephone number
will be available at all times.
4. All spirits will be stored and sold behind the counter
5. Roller shutters are in operation at the front of the premises
6. The premises will have a written policy in relation to drunkenness. Premises should not
admit persons who are visibly intoxicated and staff should be trained regarding
responsible alcohol sales, identifying drunkenness and preventing alcohol sales to them.
6.1 The premises will follow the Portman Group Code of Practice during
any drinks promotions held at the premises.

c) Public safety

An appropriate Risk assessment will be conducted

d) The prevention of public nuisance

7. Prominent, clear and legible signage shall be displayed at all exits to the premises
requesting the public to respect the needs of local residents and to leave the premises and
the area quickly and quietly. (Quiet Notice )
8. Deliveries to the premises shall be conducted in a manner that will not cause a
nuisance to the occupiers of any residential properties surrounding the delivery
address and deliveries shall be made at a time that will not lead to any public
nuisance.

9. The premises Licence holder/ Designated Premises Supervisor will ensure that all
litter arising from people using the premises is cleared away daily.
9.1 A litter log book will be kept to record the timings of all litter checks.

Page 43

Agenda Item 6

e) The protection of children from harm

10. A written register of refusals will be kept including a description of the people who have
been unable to provide required identification to prove their age. Such records shall be
kept for a period of 12 months and will be collected by the designated premises supervisor
and produced to the police or an ‘authorised person’ (as defined by section 13 of the
licensing act 2003) or an authorised trading standards officer the local authority/council on
demand.
11. All staff engaged in the sale of alcohol to be trained in Challenge 25. Training records
shall be kept on the premises and produced to the police or an ‘authorised person’ (as
defined by section 13 of the licensing act 2003) or an authorised trading standards officer
of the local authority/council on demand.
12. Proxy signs will be on display warning adults about the law surrounding buying
alcohol for children
13. Staff will monitor the outside area to identify any potential proxy
purchasing concerns.
14. Challenge 25
14.1 The premises shall operate a Challenge 25 policy. Such policy shall be written
down and kept at the premises. The policy shall be produced on demand of the police
or an ‘authorised person’
14.2 Prominent, clear and legible Challenge 25 signage shall also be displayed at all
entrances to the premises as well as at, at least one location behind any counter
advertising the scheme operated.
14.3 Only a passport, photo-card driving licence, Armed Forces ID cards
or a proof of age card bearing the official “PASS” accreditation hologram
should to be accepted as proof of age.
14.4 Alcohol refusals policies will be displayed at the entrance of the
premises, the point of display and the point of sale.
14.5 No person under the age of 18 will be employed to work at the premises.
14.6 A documented training procedure will be maintained to ensure staff are fully trained
in age verification, including induction and regular refresher training with signed records
kept of that training;
14.7 The use of till prompts in shops together with appropriate warning
notices being displayed at alcohol fixtures will be kept at all times.

Checklist:
Please tick to indicate agreement
I have made or enclosed payment of the fee. ( to be paid online via gov.uk) X I have enclosed the
plan of the premises. X
I have sent copies of this application and the plan to responsible authorities and others
where applicable. Electronic application

Page 44

Agenda Item 6

I have enclosed the consent form completed by the individual I wish to be designated premises
supervisor, if applicable. X I understand that I must now advertise my application. X
I understand that if I do not comply with the above requirements my application will be X
rejected.
[Applicable to all individual applicants, including those in a partnership which is not a limited X
liability partnership, but not companies or limited liability partnerships] I have included
documents demonstrating my entitlement to work in the United Kingdom (please read note
15).

It is an offence, under section 158 of the licensing act 2003, to make a false statement in or in connection
with this application. Those who make a false statement may be liable on summary conviction to a fine of
any amount.
It is an offence under section 24b of the immigration act 1971 for a person to work when they know, or
have reasonable cause to believe, that they are disqualified from doing so by reason of their immigration
status. Those who employ an adult without leave or who is subject to conditions as to employment will be
liable to a civil penalty under section 15 of the immigration, asylum and nationality act 2006 and
pursuant to section 21 of the same act, will be committing an offence where they do so in the knowledge,
or with reasonable cause to believe, that the employee is disqualified
Part 4 – Signatures (please read guidance note 11)
Signature of applicant or applicant’s solicitor or other duly authorised agent (see guidance note 12). If
signing on behalf of the applicant, please state in what capacity.

18
Declaration

• [Applicable to individual applicants only, including those in a partnership which
is not a limited liability partnership] I understand I am not entitled to be issued
with a licence if I do not have the entitlement to live and work in the UK (or if I
am subject to a condition preventing me from doing work relating to the carrying
on of a licensable activity) and that my licence will become invalid if I cease to
be entitled to live and work in the UK (please read guidance note 15).
• The DPS named in this application form is entitled to work in the UK (and is
not subject to conditions preventing him or her from doing work relating to
a licensable activity) and I have seen a copy of his or her proof of
entitlement to work, if appropriate (please see note 15)

Signature

Tony Clarke

Date

25th March 2021

Capacity

Agent on behalf of the applicant

For joint applications, signature of 2nd applicant or 2nd applicant’s solicitor or other authorised agent
(please read guidance note 13). If signing on behalf of the applicant, please state in what capacity.
Signature
Date
Capacity

Page 45

Agenda Item 6

Contact name (where not previously given) and postal address for correspondence associated with
this application (please read guidance note 14)
Tony Clarke
JMC Licensing Consultants
540 Antrim road
Post town

Belfast

Telephone number (if any)

Postcode

07388 441720

If you would prefer us to correspond with you by e-mail, your e-mail address
(optional) securelicenses@gmail.com

BT15 5GJ

This page is intentionally left blank

LEGEND
Camera

C

Smoke
Detector

Fire Bell

Fire Ext.
Water

Monitor

Fire Exit
Licensable
Area

C

Page 47

Dry Goods

Dry Goods

Security Door

Roller Shutters

Name of Premises
PREMISES LICENCE APPLICATION

Drawing Details

Euro Pol
The purpose of this drawing is for the s ubmission of a Premises Licence Application.
All Measurements have been drawn in millimeteres.
This drawing is not be used for the intention of any building, s hop fitting or construction purpos es.

Premises Address
192 Sutton High Street
Sutton
SM1 1NR

SCALE
1-100

Agenda Item 6

Drawing Purpose

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 49

Agenda Item 6

Appendix 2 - Proposed hours of operation

Day
Monday
Tuesday
Wednesday
Thursday
Friday
Saturday
Sunday

Opening Hours
08:00am – 21:00pm
08:00am – 21:00pm
08:00am – 21:00pm
08:00am – 21:00pm
08:00am – 21:00pm
08:00am – 21:00pm
08:00am – 21:00pm

Supply of alcohol off the
premises
08:00am – 21:00pm
08:00am – 21:00pm
08:00am – 21:00pm
08:00am – 21:00pm
08:00am – 21:00pm
08:00am – 21:00pm
08:00am – 21:00pm

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 51

Agenda Item 6

Appendix 3 - Conditions arising from applicant’s Operating Schedule
The prevention of crime and disorder
Closed-circuit television
a) The premises shall install and maintain a digital Closed-circuit television (CCTV)
system
b) The CCTV system shall have sufficient hard drive storage capacity to store a
minimum of 31 days.
c) The CCTV system shall be capable of obtaining clear facial recognition images and a
clear head and shoulders image of every person entering or leaving the premises at
each exit and entrance point.
d) A CCTV log will be completed on a weekly basis to record all elements of the CCTV
System is maintained in good working order and recordings date and time stamped.
e) All staff shall be trained in the operation of the CCTV system to ensure rapid data
retrieval & downloads of footage can be provided to the Police & the Local Authority
Officer upon reasonable request in accordance with the Data Protection Act.
f) CCTV shall be continually recording during licensable hours
g) In the event of a failure of the CCTV system for any reason, a record of the failure will
be recorded in the premises log and immediate steps will be made to rectify the
problem.
Incident / Refusals Register
a) An incident log must be kept at the premises. Log records will be retained for a
period of 12 months from the date it occurred. It will be made immediately available
on request to an ‘authorised person’ (as defined by section 13 of the Licensing Act
2003), an authorised trading standards officer or the police, and must record the
following;
(a) All crimes reported to the premises (where relevant to the licensing objectives)
(b) Any incidents of disorder
b) When the designated premises supervisor is not on duty, a contact telephone
number will be available at all times.
c) A written register of refusals will be kept including a description of the people who
have been unable to provide required identification to prove their age. Such records
shall be kept for a period of 12 months and will be collected by the designated
premises supervisor and produced to the police or an ‘authorised person’ (as defined
by section 13 of the licensing act 2003) or an authorised trading standards officer the
local authority/council on demand.
Security, general
a) All spirits will be stored and sold behind the counter
b) Roller shutters are in operation at the front of the premises
General, policies
a) The premises will have a written policy in relation to drunkenness. Premises should
not admit persons who are visibly intoxicated and staff should be trained regarding
responsible alcohol sales, identifying drunkenness and preventing alcohol sales to
them.
b) The premises will follow the Portman Group Code of Practice during any drinks
promotions held at the premises.

Agenda Item 6

Page 52

The prevention of public nuisance
Notices
a) Prominent, clear and legible signage shall be displayed at all exits to the premises
requesting the public to respect the needs of local residents and to leave the
premises and the area quickly and quietly. (Quiet Notice )
Deliveries
a) Deliveries to the premises shall be conducted in a manner that will not cause a
nuisance to the occupiers of any residential properties surrounding the delivery
address and deliveries shall be made at a time that will not lead to any public
nuisance.
Litter
a) The premises Licence holder/ Designated Premises Supervisor will ensure that all
litter arising from people using the premises is cleared away daily.
b) A litter log book will be kept to record the timings of all litter checks.
The Protection of children from harm
Proxy sales
a) Proxy signs will be on display warning adults about the law surrounding buying
alcohol for children
b) Staff will monitor the outside area to identify any potential proxy purchasing
concerns.
Challenge 25
a) The premises shall operate a Challenge 25 policy. Such policy shall be written down
and kept at the premises. The policy shall be produced on demand of the police or an
‘authorised person’
b) Prominent, clear and legible Challenge 25 signage shall also be displayed at all
entrances to the premises as well as at, at least one location behind any counter
advertising the scheme operated.
c) Only a passport, photo-card driving licence, Armed Forces ID cards or a proof of age
card bearing the official “PASS” accreditation hologram should to be accepted as
proof of age.
d) Alcohol refusals policies will be displayed at the entrance of the premises, the point
of display and the point of sale.
e) All staff engaged in the sale of alcohol to be trained in Challenge 25. Training records
shall be kept on the premises and produced to the police or an ‘authorised person’
(as defined by section 13 of the licensing act 2003) or an authorised trading
standards officer of the local authority/council on demand.
f) A documented training procedure will be maintained to ensure staff are fully trained
in age verification, including induction and regular refresher training with signed
records kept of that training;
g) The use of till prompts in shops together with appropriate warning notices being
displayed at alcohol fixtures will be kept at all times
Staff
a) No person under the age of 18 will be employed to work at the premises

Page 53

Agenda Item 6

Dear Sir/Madam
RE: Euro Poli, 192 High Street, SM1 1NR, Sutton.
NEW PREMISES LICENCE
I've notice that Euro Poli is applying for a New Premises Licence to sell alcohol in the middle
of the High Street.
I have been living in Sutton for years and I can see how the area is changing due to more
OFF Licence shops opening. More drunk people on the street, more violence and more
teenagers gathering around the off licence shops begging pedestrians to buy alcohol for
them. I have two kids and I don't really want them to be influenced to this behaviour.
Granting a licence for a shop which is located in the middle of the High Street is
unacceptable. It will only increase violent behaviour, provide easier access to alcohol for
teenagers as well as for homeless people who are gathering on the High Street. There are
many children passing by the High Street everyday on the way to and from school. Alcohol
plays a large role in criminal activities and violence. Drinking significantly increases risk of
committing violent offenses. High Street is a very busy place mixed with all age groups and
potentially could effect them all massively.
Furthermore when young teenagers drink alcohol they are not responsible and could be
easily influenced to doing crimes and acting violent towards the public and this could be a
real big problem to the local area. There already is an OFF Licence store at the start of the
High Street and has been causing massive problems as the teenagers all gather around the
store asking pedestrians to buy them alcohol and when the pedestrians refuse to do so they
become rude and violent towards them.
Lastly even my own kids on the way to school have noticed this behaviour and have been
approached by other young teenagers under the influence of alcohol and been targeted by
them receiving rude name calling and bullying. As a mother knowing this is happening
around my local area I will not tolerate this and will do whatever I can do for a change to
happen and prevent other stores from receiving a licence to sell alcohol that could increase
violence and crime within the area. The last thing we want on the High Street is more access
to alcohol for teenagers!

I hope you understand my point of view.
I look forward to hearing from you soon.
Kind regards

Agenda Item 6

Page 54

Dear Sir/Madam,
RE: OBJECTION - New Premises Licence - Euro Poli, 192 High Street, SM1 1NR,
Sutton
I am writing to register my objection to the application for a new premises licence by Euro
Poli, 192 High Street, SM1 1NR. The basis for this opposition is that granting a licence for
these premises will not promote the licensing objectives, particularly the prevention of crime,
disorder and antisocial behaviour.
Euro Poli shop lies within the hot spot area and enabling the premises to sell alcohol would
be totally detrimental to its aim’s objectives. They are planning to use 1/3 of their shop for
alcohol. Granting a licence would provide a further source of alcohol within an area already
so heavily populated with licensed premises that crime, disorder and public nuisance have
already reached problem levels for the local police. The High Street is a place where many
teenagers are passing by on the way to and from school. Alcohol should not be promoted
there.
Noise, public nuisance, anti-social behaviour, low-level nuisance (non-reportable crime inc.
shouting, swearing, urination in public, littering, shoplifting) will be increased. It wouldn't
concern me at all but for the last few months we are straggling with one of the OFF Licence
shops at the bottom of the High Street. Since the licence was granted more people started to
gather around the shop and dodgy business started to occur. Our customers have been
approached many times by teenagers asking them to buy alcohol for them and when they
refuse to do so they would be called plenty of disgusting names. It has effected our business
as some of our customers are scared and feel uncomfortable to come to our store because
of this situation. It was recently reported to the police licensing team. I have been trading on
the High Street for almost 10 years and I can see how the area is changing. Promoting more
alcohol in this area will destroy the place which is growing fast and in a good direction.
Selling alcohol in the heart of the High Street is definitely not reasonable and will bring more
crime and violence. Furthermore, it will have a massive effect on teenagers as there are
many homeless people on the High Street that would offer to buy alcohol for them. Lastly
when young teenagers are under the influence of alcohol they don't think and do
irresponsible stuff and even cause harm to the environment, this will effect the local
community majorly as said before many people will be worried about their child going to and
from school.
In view of the above, I would urge the Licensing Authority to refuse the application.
Yours faithfully,

Appendix 5 – Location Plan

Page 55
Agenda Item 6

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 57

Appendix 6 – Photographs of location

Agenda Item 6

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 59

Agenda Item 6

Appendix 7
Excerpts from Secretary of State’s Guidance and Sutton’s Statement of
Licensing Policy
Secretary of States Guidance (April 2018)
Licensing Objectives & Aims
1.2.

The legislation provides a clear focus on the promotion of four statutory objectives
which must be addressed when licensing functions are undertaken.
The licensing objectives are:

1.3.

■ The prevention of crime and disorder;
■ Public safety;
■ The prevention of public nuisance; and
■ The protection of children from harm.
1.4.
1.5.

Each objective is of equal importance. There are no other statutory licensing
objectives, so that the promotion of the four objectives is a paramount consideration
at all times.
However, the legislation also supports a number of other key aims and
purposes.
These are vitally important and should be principal aims for everyone involved
in licensing work.
They include:
■ protecting the public and local residents from crime, anti-social behaviour and
noise nuisance
■ caused by irresponsible licensed premises;
■ giving the police and licensing authorities the powers they need to effectively
manage and police the night-time economy and take action against those
premises that are causing problems;
■ recognising the important role which pubs and other licensed premises play in
our local communities by minimising the regulatory burden on business,
encouraging innovation and supporting responsible premises;
■ providing a regulatory framework for alcohol which reflects the needs of local
communities and empowers local authorities to make and enforce decisions
about the most appropriate licensing strategies for their local area; and
■ encouraging greater community involvement in licensing decisions and giving
■ local residents the opportunity to have their say regarding licensing decisions that
may affect them.

Each Application on its own merit
1.17 Each application must be considered on its own merits and in accordance with the
Licensing authority’s statement of licensing policy; for example, if the application falls
within the scope of a cumulative impact assessment. Conditions attached to licences
and certificates must be tailored to the individual type, location and characteristics of
the premises and events concerned. This is essential to avoid the imposition of
disproportionate and overly burdensome conditions on premises where there is no
need for such conditions. Standardised conditions should be avoided and indeed
may be unlawful where they cannot be shown to be appropriate for the promotion of
the licensing objectives in an individual case.

Agenda Item 6

Page 60

Crime and disorder
2.1

Licensing authorities should look to the police as the main source of advice on crime
and disorder. They should also seek to involve the local Community Safety
Partnership (CSP).

2.2

In the exercise of their functions, licensing authorities should seek to co-operate with
the Security Industry Authority (“SIA”) as far as possible and consider adding relevant
conditions to licences where appropriate. The SIA also plays an important role in
preventing crime and disorder by ensuring that door supervisors are properly
licensed and, in partnership with police and other agencies, that security companies
are not being used as fronts for serious and organised criminal activity. This may
include making specific enquiries or visiting premises through intelligence led
operations in conjunction with the police, local authorities and other partner agencies.
Similarly, the provision of requirements for door supervision may be appropriate to
ensure that people who are drunk, drug dealers or people carrying firearms do
not enter the premises and ensuring that the police are kept informed.

2.3

Conditions should be targeted on deterrence and preventing crime and disorder. For
example, where there is good reason to suppose that disorder may take place, the
presence of closed-circuit television (CCTV) cameras both inside and immediately
outside the premises can actively deter disorder, nuisance, anti-social behaviour and
crime generally. Some licence holders may wish to have cameras on their premises
for the prevention of crime directed against the business itself, its staff, or its
customers. But any condition may require a broader approach, and it may be
appropriate to ensure that the precise location of cameras is set out on plans to
ensure that certain areas are properly covered and there is no subsequent dispute
over the terms of the condition.

2.4

The inclusion of radio links and ring-round phone systems should be considered an
appropriate condition for public houses, bars and nightclubs operating in city and
town centre leisure areas with a high density of licensed premises. These systems
allow managers of licensed premises to communicate instantly with the police and
facilitate a rapid response to any disorder which may be endangering the customers
and staff on the premises.

2.5

Conditions relating to the management competency of designated premises
supervisors should not normally be attached to premises licences. It will normally be
the responsibility of the premises licence holder as an employer, and not the
licensing authority, to ensure that the managers appointed at the premises are
competent and appropriately trained. The designated premises supervisor is the key
person who will usually be responsible for the day to day management of the
premises by the premises licence holder, including the prevention of disorder. A
condition of this kind may only be justified as appropriate in rare circumstances
where it can be demonstrated that, in the circumstances associated with particular
premises, poor management competency could give rise to issues of crime and
disorder and public safety.

Page 61

2.6

Agenda Item 6

The prevention of crime includes the prevention of immigration crime including the
prevention of illegal working in licensed premises. Licensing authorities should work
with Home Office Immigration Enforcement, as well as the police, in respect of these
matters. Licence conditions that are considered appropriate for the prevention of
illegal working in licensed premises might include requiring a premises licence
holder to undertake right to work checks on all staff employed at the licensed
premises or requiring that a copy of any document checked as part of a right to work
check are retained at the licensed premises.

Public safety
2.7

Licence holders have a responsibility to ensure the safety of those using their
premises, as a part of their duties under the 2003 Act. This concerns the safety of
people using the relevant premises rather than public health which is addressed in
other legislation. Physical safety includes the prevention of accidents and injuries and
other immediate harms that can result from alcohol consumption such as
unconsciousness or alcohol poisoning. Conditions relating to public safety may also
promote the crime and disorder objective as noted above. There will of course be
occasions when a public safety condition could incidentally benefit a person’s health
more generally, but it should not be the purpose of the condition as this would be
outside the licensing authority’s powers (be ultra vires) under the 2003 Act.
Conditions should not be imposed on a premises licence or club premises certificate
which relate to cleanliness or hygiene.

2.8

A number of matters should be considered in relation to public safety. These may
include:
Fire safety;
● Ensuring appropriate access for emergency services such as ambulances;
● Good communication with local authorities and emergency services, for
example communications networks with the police and signing up for local
incident alerts
● Ensuring the presence of trained first aiders on the premises and appropriate
first aid
● Ensuring the safety of people when leaving the premises (for example, through
the provision of information on late-night transportation);
● Ensuring appropriate and frequent waste disposal, particularly of glass bottles;
● Ensuring appropriate limits on the maximum capacity of the premises
● Considering the use of CCTV in and around the premises

2.9

The measures that are appropriate to promote public safety will vary between
premises and the matters listed above may not apply in all cases. As set out in
Chapter 8 (8.38- 8.46), applicants should consider when making their application
which steps it is appropriate to take to promote the public safety objective and
demonstrate how they achieve that.

Public nuisance
2.15

The 2003 Act enables licensing authorities and responsible authorities, through
representations, to consider what constitutes public nuisance and what is appropriate
to prevent it in terms of conditions attached to specific premises licences and club

Agenda Item 6

Page 62

premises certificates. It is therefore important that in considering the promotion of this
licensing objective, licensing authorities and responsible authorities focus on the
effect of the licensable activities at the specific premises on persons living and
working (including those carrying on business) in the area around the premises which
may be disproportionate and unreasonable. The issues will mainly concern noise
nuisance, light pollution, noxious smells and litter.
2.16

Public nuisance is given a statutory meaning in many pieces of legislation. It
is however not narrowly defined in the 2003 Act and retains its broad common
law meaning. It may include in appropriate circumstances the reduction of the living
and working amenity and environment of other persons living and working in the area
of the licensed premises. Public nuisance may also arise as a result of the
adverse effects of artificial light, dust, odour and insects or where its effect is
prejudicial to health.

2.17

Conditions relating to noise nuisance will usually concern steps appropriate to control
the levels of noise emanating from premises. This might be achieved by a simple
measure such as ensuring that doors and windows are kept closed after a particular
time, or persons are not permitted in garden areas of the premises after a certain
time. More sophisticated measures like the installation of acoustic curtains or rubber
speaker mounts to mitigate sound escape from the premises may be appropriate.
However, conditions in relation to live or recorded music may not be enforceable in
circumstances where the entertainment activity itself is not licensable (see chapter
16). Any conditions appropriate to promote the prevention of public nuisance should
be tailored to the type, nature and characteristics of the specific premises and
its licensable activities. Licensing authorities should avoid inappropriate or
disproportionate measures that could deter events that are valuable to the
community, such as live music. Noise limiters, for example, are expensive to
purchase and install and are likely to be a considerable burden for smaller venues.

2.18

As with all conditions, those relating to noise nuisance may not be appropriate
in certain circumstances where provisions in other legislation adequately protect
those living in the area of the premises. But as stated earlier in this Guidance, the
approach of licensing authorities and responsible authorities should be one of
prevention and when their powers are engaged, licensing authorities should be
aware of the fact that other legislation may not adequately cover concerns raised in
relevant representations and additional conditions may be appropriate.

2.19

Where applications have given rise to representations, any appropriate conditions
should normally focus on the most sensitive periods. For example, the most sensitive
period for people being disturbed by unreasonably loud music is at night and into the
early morning when residents in adjacent properties may be attempting to go to sleep
or are sleeping. This is why there is still a need for a licence for performances of live
music between 11 pm and 8 am. In certain circumstances, conditions relating to
noise emanating from the premises may also be appropriate to address any
disturbance anticipated as customers enter and leave.

2.20

Measures to control light pollution will also require careful thought. Bright lighting
outside premises which is considered appropriate to prevent crime and disorder may
itself give rise to light pollution for some neighbours. Applicants, licensing authorities
and responsible authorities will need to balance these issues.

Page 63

2.21

Agenda Item 6

Beyond the immediate area surrounding the premises, these are matters for the
personal responsibility of individuals under the law. An individual who engages in
anti- social behaviour is accountable in their own right. However, it would be perfectly
reasonable for a licensing authority to impose a condition, following relevant
representations, that requires the licence holder or club to place signs at the exits
from the building encouraging patrons to be quiet until they leave the area, or that, if
they wish to smoke, to do so at designated places on the premises instead of outside,
and to respect the rights of people living nearby to a peaceful night.

Protection of children from harm
2.22

The protection of children from harm includes the protection of children from moral,
psychological and physical harm. This includes not only protecting children from the
harms associated directly with alcohol consumption but also wider harms such
as exposure to strong language and sexual expletives (for example, in the context
of exposure to certain films or adult entertainment). Licensing authorities must
also consider the need to protect children from sexual exploitation when
undertaking licensing functions.

2.23

The Government believes that it is completely unacceptable to sell alcohol to
children. Conditions relating to the access of children where alcohol is sold and
which are appropriate to protect them from harm should be carefully considered.
Moreover, conditions restricting the access of children to premises should be strongly
considered in circumstances where:
adult entertainment is provided;
● a member or members of the current management have been convicted for
serving alcohol to minors or with a reputation for allowing underage drinking (other
than in the context of the exemption in the 2003 Act relating to 16 and 17 year olds
consuming beer, wine and cider when accompanied by an adult during a table
meal);
●
it is known that unaccompanied children have been allowed access;
●
there is a known association with drug taking or dealing; or
● in some cases, the premises are used exclusively or primarily for the sale of
alcohol for consumption on the premises.

2.24

It is also possible that activities, such as adult entertainment, may take place at
certain times on premises but not at other times. For example, premises may operate
as a café bar during the day providing meals for families but also provide
entertainment with a sexual content after 8.00pm. It is not possible to give an
exhaustive list of what amounts to entertainment or services of an adult or sexual
nature. Applicants, responsible authorities and licensing authorities will need to
consider this point carefully. This would broadly include topless bar staff, striptease,
lap-, table- or pole- dancing, performances involving feigned violence or horrific
incidents, feigned or actual sexual acts or fetishism, or entertainment involving strong
and offensive language.

2.25

Applicants must be clear in their operating schedules about the activities and times at
which the events would take place to help determine when it is not appropriate for
children to enter the premises. Consideration should also be given to the proximity of
premises to schools and youth clubs so that applicants take appropriate steps
to ensure that advertising relating to their premises, or relating to events at their
premises, is not displayed at a time when children are likely to be near the premises.

Agenda Item 6

Page 64

2.26

Licensing authorities and responsible authorities should expect applicants, when
preparing an operating schedule or club operating schedule, to set out the steps to
be taken to protect children from harm when on the premises.

2.27

Conditions, where they are appropriate, should reflect the licensable activities taking
place on the premises. In addition to the mandatory condition regarding age
verification, other conditions relating to the protection of children from harm can
include:

● restrictions on the hours when children may be present;
● restrictions or exclusions on the presence of children under certain ages when
particular specified activities are taking place;
● restrictions on the parts of the premises to which children may have access;
● age restrictions
● restrictions or exclusions when certain activities are taking place;
● requirements for an accompanying adult (including for example, a combination of
requirements which provide that children under a particular age must be
accompanied by an adult); and
● full exclusion of people under 18 from the premises when any licensable activities
are taking place.
Other persons
8.13

As well as responsible authorities, any other person can play a role in a number of
licensing processes under the 2003 Act. This includes any individual, body or
business entitled to make representations to licensing authorities in relation to
applications for the grant, variation, minor variation or review of premises licences
and club premises certificates, regardless of their geographic proximity to the
premises. In addition, these persons may themselves seek a review of a premises
licence. Any representations made by these persons must be ‘relevant’, in that the
representation relates to one or more of the licensing objectives. It must also not be
considered by the licensing authority to be frivolous or vexatious. In the case of
applications for reviews, there is an additional requirement that the grounds for the
review should not be considered by the licensing authority to be repetitious. Chapter
9 of this guidance (paragraphs 9.4 to 9.10) provides more detail on the definition of
relevant, frivolous, vexatious
and repetitious representations.

Late Night Refreshment
3.20

Supplies of hot food or hot drink from 23:00 are exempt from the provisions of the
2003 Act if there is no admission to the public to the premises involved and they
are supplies to:
● a member of a recognised club supplied by the club;
● persons staying overnight in a hotel, guest house, lodging house, hostel, a
caravan or camping site or any other premises whose main purpose is providing
overnight accommodation;
● an employee supplied by a particular employer (for example, a staff canteen);

Page 65

Agenda Item 6

● a person who is engaged in a particular profession or who follows a
particular vocation (for example, a tradesman carrying out work at particular
premises);
● a guest of any of the above.
Representations
Relevant, vexatious and frivolous representations
9.4
A representation is “relevant” if it relates to the likely effect of the grant of the licence
on the promotion of at least one of the licensing objectives. For example, a
representation from a local businessperson about the commercial damage caused by
competition from new licensed premises would not be relevant. On the other hand, a
representation by a businessperson that nuisance caused by new premises would
deter customers from entering the local area, and the steps proposed by the
applicant to prevent that nuisance were inadequate, would be relevant. In other
words, representations should relate to the impact of licensable activities carried on
from premises on the objectives. For representations in relation to variations to be
relevant, they should be confined to the subject matter of the variation. There is no
requirement for a responsible authority or other person to produce a recorded history
of problems at premises to support their representations, and in fact this would not be
possible for new premises.
9.5

It is for the licensing authority to determine whether a representation (other than a
representation from responsible authority) is frivolous or vexatious on the basis of
what might ordinarily be considered to be vexatious or frivolous. A representation
may be considered to be vexatious if it appears to be intended to cause aggravation
or annoyance, whether to a competitor or other person, without reasonable cause or
justification. Vexatious circumstances may arise because of disputes between rival
businesses and local knowledge will therefore be invaluable in considering such
matters. Licensing authorities can consider the main effect of the representation, and
whether any inconvenience or expense caused by it could reasonably be considered
to be proportionate

9.9

It is recommended that, in borderline cases, the benefit of the doubt about any aspect
of a representation should be given to the person making that representation. The
subsequent hearing would then provide an opportunity for the person or body making
the representation to amplify and clarify it.

Hearings
9.37

As a matter of practice, licensing authorities should seek to focus the hearing on the
steps considered appropriate to promote the particular licensing objective or
objectives that have given rise to the specific representation and avoid straying into
undisputed areas. A responsible authority or other person may choose to rely on their
written representation. They may not add further representations to those disclosed
to the applicant prior to the hearing, but they may expand on their existing
representation and should be allowed sufficient time to do so, within reasonable and
practicable limits.

Agenda Item 6

9.38

Page 66

In determining the application with a view to promoting the licensing objectives in the
overall interests of the local community, the licensing authority must give appropriate
weight to:
●
●
●
●

the steps that are appropriate to promote the licensing objectives;
the representations (including supporting information) presented by all the parties;
this Guidance;
its own statement of licensing policy.

Page 67

Agenda Item 6

Hours of trading
10.13

The Government acknowledges that different licensing strategies may be appropriate
for the promotion of the licensing objectives in different areas. The 2003 Act gives the
licensing authority power to make decisions about the hours during which premises
can conduct licensable activities as part of the implementation of its licensing policy
statement. Licensing authorities are best placed to make decisions about appropriate
opening hours in their areas based on their local knowledge and in consultation with
responsible authorities. However, licensing authorities must always consider each
application and must not impose predetermined licensed opening hours, without giving
individual consideration to the merits of each application.

10.14

Where there are objections to an application to extend the hours during which
licensable activities are to be carried on and the licensing authority determines that
this would undermine the licensing objectives, it may reject the application or grant it
with appropriate conditions and/or different hours from those requested.

Agenda Item 6

Page 68

PROMOTION OF THE LICENSING OBJECTIVES
25. The Council is responsible for licensing a range of activities related to the sale and
supply of alcohol, the provision of regulated entertainment and late night refreshments.
Licensing of these activities is through four different types of authorisations or
permissions.
●
●
●
●

Premises licence
Club premises certificate
Temporary event notice
Personal licence

26. In carrying out its functions under the Act, the Licensing Authority has a duty to promote
the following licensing objectives:
●
●
●
●

the prevention of crime and disorder
public safety
the prevention of public nuisance
the protection of children from harm

27. The Licensing Authority must have regard to these objectives in carrying out its functions
under the Licensing Act 2003 and having regard to current guidance issued by the
Secretary of State, as they are reflected in its statement of licensing policy. The guidance
makes it clear that each licensing objective is of equal importance and the Licensing
Authority is expected to consider their promotion as of ‘paramount importance’. It will
always consider the circumstances and merits of each application and it may make
exceptions to its policy approach where it is appropriate to do so in order to promote the
licensing objectives and it will give its reasons for doing so.
28. As well as the statutory objectives, the Act and guidance support a number of other key
aims and purposes linked to the licensable activities that are considered to be vitally
important. They include:
● protecting the public and local residents from crime, anti-social behaviour and
noise nuisance caused by irresponsible licensed premises;
● giving the police and licensing authorities the powers they need to effectively
manage and police the night-time economy;
● recognising the important role that pubs and other licensed premises play in our
communities by minimising the regulatory burden on businesses, encouraging
innovation and supporting responsible premises;
● providing a regulatory framework for alcohol that reflects the needs of local
communities and empowers them to make and enforce decisions about the most
responsible licensing strategies for their local area, and
● encouraging greater community involvement in licensing decisions and giving local
residents the opportunity to have their say regarding licensing decisions that may
impact them.
29. The Council must set out how it will promote the statutory objectives and support the
other key aims and purposes in a Statement of Policy and this must strike a reasonable
balance between different and sometimes competing aims, including widening the choice
and appeal of licensed premises and the development of culture and protection of local
residents.

Page 69

Agenda Item 6

COMMENTING ON APPLICATIONS (MAKING REPRESENTATIONS)
64.

The Authority recognises that the Act, and the Secretary of State’s Guidance, specify
what matters it may take into consideration when determining whether any
representation made is relevant. This will include a consideration whether any
representation made is frivolous or vexatious (as defined by guidance).

65.

Though not specified by the relevant legislation or guidance, the Authority will only
consider representations received in writing, be this by letter, facsimile, e-mail or via our
online portal. Representations must be made within the relevant time period specified in
the Act for the application type being considered.

PREVENTION OF CRIME AND DISORDER
105.

The Authority recognises that licensed premises, particularly late night venues, can be a
focus of crime and disorder problems. Therefore, whether the premises make, or will
make, a significant contribution to levels of crime and disorder, and whether the
Operating Schedule is based on an adequate risk assessment, undertaken by the
applicant, of the likelihood of crime and disorder occurring as a result of the grant of the
application is a key criterion.

106.

Applicants must clearly set out and explain in their Operating Schedule how the
operation of the premises will promote the prevention of crime and disorder. For pubs,
bars and premises with facilities for music and dancing (e.g. night clubs), a specific
assessment is needed as to how the risks of violence and crime in the premises and
within the vicinity will be managed.

107.

Where relevant representations are made, the Authority will tailor appropriate conditions
for premises licences and club premises certificates. In doing so, the Authority will treat
the Police as a main source of advice on appropriate conditions for particular premises.

108.

The Authority will carry out its licensing functions so as to promote the prevention of
crime and disorder, by ensuring that Licence Holders take measures to regulate the
behaviour of persons on the premises and patrons who are in the vicinity.

PROOF OF AGE
110.

In October 2010 a Mandatory Condition came into force requiring premises with Licences
authorising the sale or supply of alcohol to implement an age verification policy in relation
to the sale or supply of alcohol. The condition requires that the policy must incorporate
measures to ensure that individuals who appear to be under 18 years of age (or such
older age as may be specified in the policy) to produce on request, before being served
alcohol, identification bearing their photograph, date of birth and a holographic mark.

111.

The Authority recognises and supports the “Challenge 25” campaign, whereby anyone
appearing to be under the age of 25 is asked to provide identification to demonstrate
they are over 18, before being sold alcohol. The authority expects all holders of licenses
permitting the sale of alcohol to implement and actively publicise “No ID – No Sale”
schemes, and encourages applicants to adopt current best practice on age verification
policies – “Challenge 25”.

Agenda Item 6

Page 70

112.

Licence Holders are expected to include within their age verification policy:
a. documented training procedures to ensure staff are fully trained in age verification,
including induction and regular refresher training with signed records kept of that
training;
b. use of till prompts in shops together with appropriate warning notices being
displayed at alcohol fixtures;
c. the use of refused sale records, which are regularly checked and signed off by the
Designated Premises Supervisor.

113.

The Authority supports and recommends that premises accept identity cards bearing the
logo of the Proof of Age Standards Scheme (PASS) accreditation, which aims to approve
and accredit various proof of age schemes that are in existence and thereby ensures that
such schemes maintain high standards, particularly in the area of integrity and security.
Details of the PASS scheme are available from the Trading Standards Responsible
Authority [contact details available at Appendix 1].

PUBLIC SAFETY
117.

Whether appropriate and satisfactory general and technical risk assessments,
management procedures and certificates have been made available to the relevant
responsible authority and the licensing authority that demonstrate that the public will be
safe within and in the vicinity of the premises are the key criteria relevant to this
objective.

118.

The Authority must try to ensure the safety of people visiting and working in licensed
premises. It will therefore need to be satisfied that measures to promote public safety,
including risk assessments, setting safe capacities, adequate means of escape and,
where appropriate, closed-circuit television are put in place and adequately maintained, if
not provided for by other regulatory regimes. As such, it is expected that applicants will
satisfactorily address these issues in their operating schedules and plans/drawings
submitted as part of the application process.

119.

The Authority is not in a position to impose conditions on licences that relate to fire safety
legislation, for whom the enforcing authority is the London Fire Brigade (LFB). However,
given that applications must be submitted to LFB, who may make representations on
applications which are not considered to be demonstrating the promotion of public safety,
applicants are advised to make contact with their local fire safety officer for advice
regarding measures to ensure adequate fire protection and means of escape prior to the
submission of applications.

120.

Whilst existing health and safety legislation will generally be sufficient to control risks to
the safety of the public in most premises, the Authority recognises that, in some
situations, statutory requirements may not be adequate, or be in place, to ensure public
safety. Where its right is invoked, the Authority may impose conditions requiring the
licence holder to take steps over and above minimum legal requirements as may be
necessary to ensure safety.

121.

It should be noted that conditions relating to public safety should be those that are
appropriate in the particular circumstances of any individual premises or club premises,
and should not duplicate other requirements of existing health and safety legislation.
Equally, the attachment of conditions to a premises licence or club premises certificate
does not in any way relieve employers of their statutory duty to comply with the
requirements of primary health and safety or fire safety legislation.

Page 71

Agenda Item 6

PUBLIC NUISANCE
127.

The Borough has a substantial residential population and the authority has a
responsibility to protect it from nuisance. In certain locations, the increased concentration
of entertainment uses and longer hours of operation have adversely affected local
residents. Commercial occupiers of premises also have a legitimate expectation of an
environment that is attractive and help sustain their business. The role of the Council as
a licensing authority is to maintain an appropriate balance between the legitimate
aspirations of the entertainment industry and the needs of residents, businesses,
workers, shoppers and visitors.

128.

The potential for nuisance associated with the style, characteristics and activities of the
business to be carried on at the premises and the potential steps which could be taken to
reduce the risk of nuisance occurring are therefore the key criteria relevant to this
objective. This will particularly apply where there is residential accommodation in the
proximity of the premises.

129.

The Authority will expect applicants to set out in their Operating Schedules the steps
taken, or proposed to be taken, to deal with the potential for public nuisance arising from
the operation of the premises or open air site under the licence.

130.

Applicants should identify and describe through a risk assessment how these risks will
be managed. Public nuisance could include low-level nuisance perhaps affecting a small
number of people living locally as well as major disturbance affecting the whole
community. It may include, in appropriate circumstances, a reduction of the living and
working amenity and environment of interested parties in the vicinity of licensed
premises.

THE PROTECTION OF CHILDREN FROM HARM
139.

The Authority supports the formation of family-friendly entertainment environments and
whether there are appropriate measures in place to protect children from harm (including
moral, psychological and physical harm) is the key criteria relevant to this objective.

140.

Applicants are expected to demonstrate in their Operating Schedule that suitable and
sufficient measures have been identified and implemented to protect children from harm,
having regard to the style, characteristics and activities of the premises and the activities
provided. The measures expected to be considered may include staff training on how to
control the entry of young people under 18 and the vetting of staff who will supervise
them. Applicants will have to give particular regard to these measures in applications for
licences involving:
● the sale of alcohol
● children’s performances
● attractions or performances likely to attract children

Agenda Item 6

141.

Page 72

It is an offence to sell alcohol to children (under 18). There is a further specific offence of
persistently selling alcohol to children if sales are made on 2 or more occasions within 3
months. Unaccompanied children under 16 should not be on “premises being used
exclusively or primarily for the supply of alcohol” e.g. pubs, bars and nightclubs. In
addition, unaccompanied children under the age of 16 should not be allowed on licensed
premises between the hours of midnight and 5.00 am. Operating Schedules should
consider whether there will be circumstances when children under 16 should not be on
the premises and whether they were there for a specific purpose such as partaking of a
meal or being entertained by live performances and whether there were any specific
aspects of licensable or other activities taking place where children should be excluded
e.g. drinks promotions or particular types of performances or competitions.

RESPONSIBLE RETAILING
149.

The Authority expects all applicants and licence holders to recognise the responsibility
that the retail sale or supply of alcohol brings in order to promote the licensing objective
relating to the protection of children from harm.

OPERATING SCHEDULES – ADDITIONAL CONSIDERATIONS
157.

The following section sets out a range of additional considerations and controls that the
Authority may have regard to, depending on the location of the applicants premises, in
order to ensure that the licensing objectives are met. Some of the controls described
may have greater significance and be given greater emphasis by the Licensing
Sub-committee as a result.

Door Supervision
● The use of door supervisors at licensed premises play a valuable role in controlling
queues, undertaking searches for the purpose of preventing drugs or offensive
weapons being admitted and for ensuring any capacity limits are not exceeded
● Whilst all applicants should assess whether the provision of door staff is necessary
for their business, the authority expects that all Pubs, Bars, Nightclubs and premises
offering Late Night Refreshment to provide door supervisors. The number of door
supervisors should be identified through risk assessment and with due consideration
to the health and safety of door supervisors, staff and the public. This assessment
should consider the need for female door supervisors.
● Where its right is invoked, the Authority will generally impose a condition requiring
door staff on licences for this type of premises, unless it can be demonstrated that
such a condition is not appropriate for the promotion of the licensing objectives.
● Applicants and licence holders are expected to ensure that a policy on searching
customers is devised and implemented. Searches of persons bags, or in some cases
pat down or metal detector body searches may be necessary to prevent and deter the
bringing into licensed premises of drugs and / or offensive weapons. Door
supervisors are trained and equipped with the necessary skills to undertake this task,
and it may be necessary in certain types of establishments for conditions to be
included that require the carrying out of searches.

Page 73

Agenda Item 6

Closed-Circuit Television (CCTV) systems
● CCTV cameras are a vital asset to both the licence holder and the regulatory
authorities. Footage obtained by CCTV has proven to be a vital source of evidence in
detecting crime at and immediately outside licensed premises.
● Overt cameras also help deter criminal acts, such as theft of stock, and whilst it is
acknowledged that the installation of CCTV may incur considerable expenditure, the
Authority expects all applicants and licence holders to consider providing CCTV
systems
● The Authority expects that CCTV systems will:
o cover all entrances, exits, internal and external areas of the premises.
o Ensure that images are stored for a minimum of 31 days
o Enable images to be delivered to Police or Council Officers in a recognised
format, in a timely manner, upon request
o be adequately maintained so as to operate and record at all times the
premises are open (for crime prevention purposes, it is recommended that
CCTV systems are operational 24 hours a day, using motion sensors during
non-opening hours).
Control of glass drinking vessels
● Glass drinking vessels can be used as weapons and when broken can inflict serious
injury during incidents of disorder, not only within licensed premises, but further away
if such vessels are permitted to be removed from the premises.
● It is expected that applicants will consider whether drinks should be provided in
toughened glass drinking vessels, and whether, after a given time at night, drinks
usually served in bottles should be decanted before service. Such conditions can be
subject to appropriate exceptions, for example in the case of champagne bottles or
wine sold for consumption with a table meal.
● The Authority considers that all premises serving alcohol for consumption on the
premises should be subject to conditions preventing open bottles being taken away
from the premises.
Lighting
● In certain premises where levels of natural light may be reduced, consideration
should also be given to conditions that ensure that electrical lighting in any area
accessible to members of the public shall be maintained fully operational when the
premises is open.
● It may also be necessary to use conditions to control the use of external lighting
operated in conjunction with licensable activities. For example, floodlighting to
gardens and smoking areas should only illuminate intended areas, and flashing or
particularly bright lights on or outside licensed premises must not cause a nuisance to
nearby properties.
● However, the Authority recognises the benefits to the prevention of crime and
disorder of lighting in certain areas of the premises, and any conditions must be
mindful of ensuring such benefits are promoted.

Agenda Item 6

Page 74

Management Practices
● The Authority considers good management practices are essential, and would expect
applicants and licence holders to demonstrate good practice, where appropriate
through conditions requiring written documentation in respect of:
● Dispersal of customers
● Noise management
● Drugs policy
● Queue control and Searching
● Control of deliveries and the disposal of empty bottles and other refuse late at
night
● The control of noise emanating from licensed premises, or occurring as a result of the
provision of licensable activities, should be considered by premises located close to
areas of residential accommodation. In particular:
o In certain premises consideration should be given to conditions to ensure that
noise or vibration does not emanate from the premises. This could be
achieved through a requirement to keep doors and windows closed, for
example, or perhaps to require use of noise limiters on amplification
equipment.
o It may also be necessary to restrict the use of gardens or other external
drinking areas after certain times to reduce the level of noise likely to be
generated. For example, conditions may restrict the use of such areas by
preventing the taking of drinks or food into the areas after a given time, but
thereby still providing facilities for smokers.
o The disposal of refuse or recycling generated by the operation of a licensed
premises can, when undertaken at the wrong time of day, cause significant
noise particularly in respect of the moving and disposal of glass bottles. It may
therefore be necessary to condition that undertaking of such activities will take
place at times that will minimise disturbance.
● A number of licensed premises, particularly those predominantly providing late night
refreshment, have the potential to affect the quantity of litter on the streets around the
neighbourhood. It is expected that any premises wishing to provide late night
refreshment, as their predominant licensable activity will agree to conditions requiring
the cleaning of the pavement immediately in front of their premises. The same
conditions may also be necessary for businesses that generate significant quantities
of printed matter, by way of flyers or promotions.
● The Authority recognises the importance of Pubwatch and considers the attendance
at meetings of representatives from premises contributing to the evening and late
night economy as essential.

